No.	96995-7		

Court of Appeals No. 76946-4-I

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINTON

CHRIS HATCH and STACIE HATCH,

Petitioner's

٧.

TOM LYTH and MARJA-LIISA LYTH,

Respondents

PETITION FOR REVIEW

Chris Hatch, Pro Se PO Box 188 Acme, WA 98220

A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONERS

Chris Hatch and Stacie Hatch move this Court for review of the Court of Appeals decision in *Hatch v. Lyth*, Case # 76946-4-I (see Appendix A).

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION

The decision of the appellate court decision effectively substitutes the term "shall" in place of "may" as it applies to RCW 4.08.040.

Further, it would obligate a nonacting spouse to the acts of an active spouse in all causes of action contemplated in RCW 4.08.040, including binding a nonacting spouse to a CR2A Stipulation entered into by an active spouse, without the nonactive spouse having firsthand knowledge thereof, without participating, and without notice and due process.

The decision grants over a nonacting spouse all authority to act on behalf of an nonactive spouse to the active spouse on behalf of each individual and the marital community in any court proceeding, contrary to statute, precedence, and violates basic provisions of the 14th Amendment to the United States Constitution, and adopted court rule CR2A. The decision would effectively turn acting spouses into attorneys by virtue of their own participation and, thus, their own action would bind the nonactive spouse as to the marital community, thus side-stepping the underlying requirements of CR2A.

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

- 1. Do the acts of an active spouse extend to a nonactive spouse by virtue of RCW 4.08.040 as to individual property and marital property?
- 2. Who has the burden of establishing that all of the conditions of CR2A have been met?
- 3. If Stipulations are both agreements and judgements, and participation is required, would a non-participating, nonactive spouse, having no knowledge of the Stipulation prior to entry, be bound to it even when the active spouse clearly did not sign it on her behalf?

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

While the lower Court fully acknowledges that Stacie Hatch did not participate in the CR2A Stipulation, they argue that RCW 4.08.040 and RCW 26.16.030 provides the authority for Chris Hatch to obligate the marital community and on her behalf.

In this case, the lower court has falsely reasoned that the requirement for "participation" is met by virtue of an active spouse' signature, even when the record clearly absent any evidence that the act was on behalf of the nonacting spouse in any capacity. The lower court's interpretation and application of RCW 4.08.040 would commit every act of an active spouse in a suit to that of a nonacting spouse, which cannot be and by every standard is against goof public policy.

E. ARGUMENT FOR WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE GRANTED

By allowing the lower court's decision to stand, innocent nonacting spouses

E. ARGUMENT FOR WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE GRANTED

By allowing the lower court's decision to stand, innocent nonacting spouses rights to due process will be violated. It will provide for misconduct on the part of litigants, their attorneys, and courts who can exploit the interpretation of the authority the court supplants in that granted by the Legislature. If left to stand, the lower court will have rewritten CR2A and RCW 4.08.040 to mean that the requirements thereunder are met if an acting spouse acts without a nonactive spouse, whether or not with regard to the individual or the marital community.

Further, RCW 26.16.030 requires that express or implied consent be granted by the other with regard to the "giving" of community property. Consent cannot be granted for this act by virtue of RCW 4.08.040. Consent requires knowledge to the transaction, its terms and conditions, an participation. *The Colorado National Bank of Denver v. Gary Merlino, et.al* 35 Wash. App.610 (1983) 668 P.2d 1304.

The Supreme Court repeatedly and firmly has held that a right to notice and a meaningful opportunity to be heard is a fundamental right of due process. The lower court's decision cannot stand to supplant these requirements anymore than the trail court should have never left it up to "guess work" as to which party's were aware of the CR2A Stipulation and in agreement.

A review of this case is fundamental and necessary to the sound governance and execution of laws and constitutional protections afforded its citizens. Neither the Legislature or the law contemplates that a person's rights are available for the taking away without notice and an opportunity to be heard. The required notice, here, is

authority to enter was granted, which it was not. That authority cannot be granted by the lack of participation, nor can it be conferred alone by the very participation of one of the party's. Left unchanged, this interpretation the lower court leaves us with would inevitably be exploited to the detriment of person's constitutional protections, and in violation of what the Legislature has deemed good public policy

CONCLUSION

Stipulations require participation in order for entry. The appellate court has mistakenly applied the idea that a nonacting spouse need not participate in a stipulation that applies to them individually and as to their marital community so long as one active spouse has. The Legislature neither requires or mandates that an active spouse act on behalf of the other. There is no evidence before any court in this case that Stacie Hatch participated, or that authority or consent was granted, nor is there any evidence that the act of signing the Stipulation was on behalf of his spouse or their marital community. The public's interest in this case involves correctly interpreting RCW 4.08.040 so that the present interpretation does not lend itself, as here, in public corruption.