FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
4/15/2019 3:30 PM
BY SUSAN L. CARLSON
CLERK

NO. 96995-7

Court of Appeals No. 76946-4-I

IN THE SUPREME COURT
OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

STACIE HATCH and CHRIS HATCH,
wife and husband

Appellants,

v.

TOM LYTH AND MARJA-LIISA LYTH,
husband and wife,

Respondents.

RESPONSE TO
PETITION FOR REVIEW

PHILIP A. SERKA, WSBA #6814
Attorneys for Respondents
Tom Lyth and Marja-Liisa Lyth

ADELSTEIN, SHARPE & SERKA LLP
400 N. Commercial Street
Bellingham, WA 98225
(360) 671-6565
pserka@adelstein.com

INTRODUCTION

There is no reason that this case needs to be heard by the Supreme Court. Hatch's request for review is simply the latest in a series of increasingly frivolous attempts to avoid paying a judgment he agreed to in open court in 2013.

II.
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Chris Hatch unlawfully cut down the Lyths' trees nearly a decade ago, and the Lyths sued him, his wife, and their marital community in Superior Court. See generally Lyth v. Hatch, No. 76946-4-1 at 1 (Jan. 14, 2019) ("Opinion Below"). The Hatches both appeared, were represented by counsel and defended the lawsuit. *Id.* at 2-3. In their Answer they did not deny that the marital community would be liable in the event liability existed. CP 10-13.

On the day of trial, December 3, 2013, Chris Hatch agreed to a stipulated judgment awarding the Lyths judgment against "Christian and Stacie Hatch, husband and wife, jointly and severally, and the marriage community thereof." Opinion Below at 4. The judgment was duly entered by the trial court. The Hatches did not file a timely appeal. *Id.*

More than two years later, the Hatches began a series of repeated, untimely appeals and motions attempting to avoid the judgment. *Id.* at 4-5. All have been rejected by the Whatcom County Superior Court and by the Court of Appeals (twice). *Id.*

The Hatches now request discretionary review by this Court. They ignore the many procedural defects in their various appeals. Instead, the Hatches ask the Court to reverse the Court of Appeals' unexceptional application of bedrock Washington law, which would require overturning Washington's entire community property system.

The Court should reject the request.

**III.
REASONS TO DENY THE REQUEST
FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW**

Discretionary review is granted only under limited circumstances:

- (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or
- (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a published decision of the Court of Appeals; or
- (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or

- (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

RAP 13.4(b).

The Hatches do not clearly articulate which category they believe they fall into. However, items (1)-(2) are plainly inapplicable, and the Hatches have not briefed any constitutional arguments under item (3). Presumably the Hatches believe this case involves an “issue of substantial public interest.”

First, as an initial matter, the Hatches do not explain how the Court could reach the substance of their case given the unique procedural posture. See Opinion Below at 10. Even if there were errors of law in the judgment, the Hatches failed to timely appeal and only attempted to vacate the judgment after years of inexcusable neglect. *Id.* at 4-6, 7-8. The trial court was well within its discretion to deny their motion.

Second, the Hatches’ primary substantive contention is with the legal concept that either spouse has authority to manage community property, and to enter into binding contracts on behalf of the community. RCW 26.16.030. This core element of Washington’s community property system unsurprisingly carries over to conducting litigation.

Either spouse or either domestic partner may join in all causes of action arising from injuries to the person or character of either or both of them, or from injuries to the property of either or both of them, or arising out of any contract in favor of either or both of them.

If the spouses or the domestic partners are sued together, either or both spouses or either or both domestic partners may defend, and if one spouse or one domestic partner neglects to defend, the other spouse or other domestic partner may defend for the nonacting spouse or nonacting domestic partner also.

RCW 4.08.040.

The Hatches argue that these legal principles “cannot be.” In fact, the principles are even older than the State of Washington itself. *See generally*, Harry M. Cross, *The Community Property Law in Washington*, 49 Wash. L. Rev. 729, 733 (1974) (first community property laws passed in Washington territory in 1869).

Chris Hatch had legal authority to execute a stipulated judgment on behalf of his marital community. Opinion Below at 9-10. He did so back in 2013. He has no basis under Washington law for now claiming he was without authority. The trial court properly denied the Hatches’ motion to vacate.

There is no substantial issue of law here. This case involves a routine situation applied every day in Washington courts. The Court should reject the petition for discretionary review.

**IV.
CONCLUSION**

The Court should deny the petition for discretionary review.